
DESERT WATER AGENCY BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

JANUARY 19, 2016                                                            REGULAR MEETING AGENDA                                            
 
REGULAR MEETING   8:00 A.M.   OPERATIONS CENTER - 1200 SOUTH GENE AUTRY TRAIL  – PALM SPRINGS – CALIFORNIA 

About Desert Water Agency: 
Desert Water Agency operates independently of any other local government.  Its autonomous elected board members are directly accountable to the people they serve. The Agency is one of the desert’s 
two State Water Contractors and provides water and resource management, including recycling, for a 325-square-mile area of Western Riverside County, encompassing parts of Cathedral City, Desert 
Hot Springs, outlying Riverside County and Palm Springs. 

1. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
  
2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES –  January 5, 2016  CIOFFI                       

                                 
3. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT   LUKER 

 
4. COMMITTEE REPORTS –   A. Executive – January 13, 2016        CIOFFI 
                 
5. PUBLIC INPUT:  

Members of the public may comment on any item not listed on the agenda, but within the jurisdiction of the Agency.  In addition, members of the public may speak on any 
item listed on the agenda as that item comes up for consideration.  Speakers are requested to keep their comments to no more than three (3) minutes.  As provided in the 
Brown Act, the Board is prohibited from acting on items not listed on the agenda. 
 

6. SECRETARY-TREASURER’S REPORT  - December 2015  BLOOMER                                                                        
  

7. ITEMS FOR ACTION  
 A. Board Committee Assignments  CIOFFI 
    
8. ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION   

A. December Water Use Reduction Figures  LUKER 
B. Lake Perris Seismic Remediation  KRAUSE                                                                     

 
9. DIRECTORS COMMENTS AND REQUESTS 

 
10. CLOSED SESSION 

 
 A.  CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION 
  Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1) 
  Name of Case: Agua Caliente Band of Cahuilla Indians vs. Coachella Valley Water District, et al 
 
 B. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION 
  Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1) 
  Name of Case: Agua Caliente Band of Cahuilla Indians vs. County of Riverside, et al 
  
 C. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION 
  Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1) 
  Name of Case: Desert Water Agency vs. U.S. Department of Interior 
 

 D. CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATORS 
  Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.8 
  Property: 1.17 acre lot North of the Northeast corner of Sunrise Way and Mesquite Avenue,  
  APN No. 502-560-038 
  Agency Negotiators: David K. Luker, General Manager and Mark S. Krause, Asst. General Manager 
  Negotiating Parties: Chris Thomsen, New Mesquite HOA 
  Under Negotiation: Price and terms of possible acquisition 

    
11. RECONVENE INTO OPEN SESSION – REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION 

 
12. ADJOURN 

 

 

Upon request, this agenda will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to persons with disabilities, as required by Section 202 of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.  
Any person with a disability who requires a modification or accommodation in order to participate in a meeting is asked to contact Desert Water Agency’s Executive Secretary, at (760) 323-
4971, at least 48 working hours prior to the meeting to enable the Agency to make reasonable arrangements.  Copies of records provided to Board members which relate to any agenda 
item to be discussed in open session may be obtained from the Agency at the address indicated on the agenda. 



8617 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 01/05/16 

 

    2 
MINUTES 

OF THE REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE 

DESERT WATER AGENCY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
January 5, 2016 

 
DWA Board: Craig A. Ewing, President  ) 
 James Cioffi, Vice President   )         
 Joseph K. Stuart, Secretary-Treasurer ) 
 Patricia G. Oygar, Director ) 
  Kristin Bloomer, Director ) 
   
DWA Staff: David K. Luker, General Manager ) 
 Mark S. Krause, Asst. General Manager ) 
 Martin S. Krieger, Finance Director ) 
 Sylvia Baca, Asst. Secretary of the Board ) 
 Steve Johnson, Operations Engineer ) 
 Ashley Hudgens, Public Information Officer ) 
   
Consultant: Michael T. Riddell, Best Best & Krieger ) 
 
Public: Trae Daniel, Palm Springs resident ) 
 David Freedman, PS Sustainability Comm. ) 
     

Attendance 

17354.  President Ewing opened the meeting at 8:00 a.m. and asked 
everyone to join Secretary-Treasurer Stuart in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
17355.  President Ewing noted the agenda called for the election of 
Board officers. He then asked for nominations for President. 
 
  President Ewing made a motion to nominate Vice President 
Cioffi for the position of President; Secretary-Treasurer Stuart seconded the 
motion. Director Oygar moved to close the nominations; upon a unanimous 
vote, Vice President Cioffi was elected President of the Board. Outgoing 
President Ewing handed the gavel to incoming President Cioffi. 
 
  President Cioffi asked for nominations for the position of 
Vice President. 
 
  President Cioffi made a motion to nominate Secretary-
Treasurer Stuart for the position of Vice President; Director Ewing 
seconded the motion. Director Oygar moved to close the nominations; upon 
a unanimous vote, Secretary-Treasurer Stuart was elected Vice President of 

Pledge of Allegiance 
 
 
 
Election of Board 
Officers 
 
 
 
Board President 
 
President Cioffi 
 
 
 
 
 
Board Vice President 
 
 
 
 
Vice President Stuart 
 
 
 
 
 



8618 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 01/05/16 

 
the Board. 
 
  President Cioffi asked for nominations for the position of 
Secretary-Treasurer. 
 
  Vice President Stuart made a motion to nominate Director 
Bloomer for the position of Secretary-Treasurer; Director Oygar seconded 
the motion. Director Oygar moved to close the nominations; upon a 
unanimous vote, Director Bloomer was elected Secretary-Treasurer of the 
Board. 
   
17356.  President Cioffi called for approval of the December 15, 2015 
Regular Board meeting minutes. 
 
  Director Oygar moved for approval. After a second by Vice 
President Stuart, the minutes were approved as written. 
 
17357.  President Cioffi called upon General Manager Luker to 
provide an update on Agency operations. 
 
  Mr. Luker stated on December 16 at approximately 11:50 
p.m., stand-by responded to a hit backflow at 1450 South Palm Canyon 
Drive, it was a hit and run. The manager at the location authorized staff to 
make the necessary repairs. The repairs have been made, the backflow is 
back in service and the water loss was metered. 
     
  Mr. Luker stated on December 17 at approximately 11:30 
a.m., a fire hydrant located on Via Escuela, west of Girasol was severed six 
inches below the hydrant flange and bent over. Granite Construction was in 
the area grinding the street for paving. DWA crews were also in the area 
and were able to respond quickly but were delayed because they had to 
locate the valve and dig it up due to the work Granite was doing. The water 
ran from a fully open six-inch riser for thirty to forty-five minutes. The 
water shot up in the air and on the property at 447 Via Escuela. The water 
ran from the front of that property down the east side towards the back 
south east corner where a section of a brick wall came down against trees at 
the property located at 423 Via Escuela. The water also flooded the 
backyard pool area at 423 Via Escuela. 
 
  Mr. Luker noted there was no evidence that Granite severed 
the hydrant; it was possibly due to age and the work being conducted on the 
street. 
 
  Concluding his report, Mr. Luker stated on December 24 at 
approximately 2:00 a.m., stand-by responded to two hit backflows at 36605 
Sunair Plaza and 36480 Bankside Dr. (located next to each other). The 
backflow at Bankside was repaired by the customer’s plumber. The 
property manager for Sunair Plaza authorized DWA to make the necessary 

Election of Board 
Officers 
(Cont.) 
Board Secretary-
Treasurer 
 
Secretary-Treasurer 
Bloomer 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Approval of 12/15/15 
Regular Board Mtg. 
Minutes  
 
 
 
 
 
General Manager’s 
Report 
 
 
 
Hit Backflow 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Fire Hydrant Severed 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Hit Backflows 
36605 Sunair Plaza 
36480 Bankside Drive 
 
 
 
 



8619 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 01/05/16 

 
repairs, which have been made and is now back in service. A police report 
was made and the water loss was metered. 
 
  President Cioffi reported on December 20 a vehicle hit a 
hydrant at 700 Tahquitz Canyon; the driver of the vehicle was injured along 
with pedestrians. 
 
  Vice President Stuart commented that he was in the area of 
the Via Escuela incident and noted the professionalism and great work by 
DWA crews. 
 
17358.  Director Ewing noted the minutes for the December 22, 2015 
Executive Committee were provided in the Board’s packet. 
 
17359.  President Cioffi opened the meeting for public input. 
 
  Trae Daniel expressed his discontent with the recent letter he 
received from the Agency regarding the Turf Buy Back program 
participants receiving $600 or more are subject to federal tax filings. He 
opined that the Agency receives some type of tax credit from participants.  
       
  There being no one else from the public wishing to address 
the Board, President Cioffi closed the public comment period. 
 
17360.  President Cioffi called upon General Manager Luker to 
present staff’s request for authorization for Board attendance at Irrigation 
Leader magazine’s Operations & Management Workshop. 
 
  Mr. Luker stated that President Cioffi and Vice President 
Stuart have been invited to speak at this year’s event. The theme for this 
year is “Security: Protecting Personnel, Water, and the Bottom Line”. He 
noted that Public Information Officer Hudgens will also be speaking at the 
event. Staff recommends that the Board approve and authorize President 
Cioffi and Vice President Stuart to attend the workshop in service to the 
Board. 
 
  Director Bloomer made a motion to approve authorization for 
President Cioffi and Vice President Stuart’s attendance at Irrigation 
Leader’s Operations & Management Workshop in Phoenix, AZ. After a 
second by President Cioffi, the motion carried unanimously. 
 
17361.  President Cioffi called upon General Manager Luker to 
present staff’s request for authorization for Board attendance at Urban 
Water Institute’s Spring Water Conference. 
  
  Mr. Luker stated this year’s Urban Water Institute Spring 
Water Conference will be held on February 10 – 12, 2016 at the Hilton 
Palm Springs hotel. Staff recommends that the Board approve and authorize 

General Manager’s 
Report  
(Cont.) 
Hit Hydrant 
700 Tahquitz Canyon 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Committee Reports –  
Executive 12/22/15 
 
 
 
Public Input 
 
 
Trae Daniel 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Action Items: 
Request Authorization 
for Board Attendance-
Irrigation Leader 
Workshop 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Request Authorization 
for Board Attendance to 
Urban Water Institute’s 
Spring Water 
Conference 
 
 
 
 
 



8620 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 01/05/16 

 
those Board Members who are interested in attending the conference in 
service to the Board. 
 
  Vice President Stuart made a motion to approve and authorize 
Board members to attend the Urban Water Institute Spring Water 
Conference in service to the Board. Director Ewing seconded the motion, 
which carried unanimously. 
 
17362.  President Cioffi called upon Operations Engineer Johnson to 
present staff’s request for authorization to accept 2014-2015 replacement 
pipeline project (Avenida Caballeros 36” pipeline, between Amado Road 
and Alejo Road). 
 
  Mr. Johnson stated Borden Excavating, Inc. has performed all 
work for this project. He noted the 2014-2015 capital improvement budget 
includes work order#14-195 for installation of said replacement pipeline. 
The budget for the work order is $1,700,000 including engineering, 
overheads, construction and inspection. To date, $1,469,900 has been spent, 
with an additional estimated inspection cost of $20,000 to be paid prior to 
closing the work order. The project is estimated to be completed $210,100 
under budget. Staff recommends the Agency accept said work in the 
amount of $1,340,545.02. 
 
  Director Ewing made a motion to approve staff’s 
recommendation. Director Oygar seconded the motion, which carried 
unanimously. 
 
17363.  President Cioffi asked Assistant General Manager Krause to 
present staff’s request for approval to enter into a joint agreement with SCE 
and JTN Energy, LLC for Snow Creek Hydro Power Purchase Agreement. 
    
  Mr. Krause stated on November 20, 1984, DWA executed a 
30-year power purchase contract with Southern California Edison (SCE) for 
the Snow Creek Power Plant. The term began on the commercial operation 
date of February 2, 1988, as recorded by SCE. The Snow Creek power plant 
went online 28 years ago and its power agreement will expire in 25 months, 
February 2, 2018. 
 
  Continuing his report, Mr. Krause indicated that entering into 
a power purchase agreement with SCE today is a lengthy process. DWA 
began investigating requirements and options several months ago with JTN 
Energy, LLC as the consultant to procure a 20-year term Renewable Market 
Adjusted Tariff (ReMAT) contract with SCE for the Whitewater Power 
Plant. Subsequently, JTN was hired by DWA and CVWD to do this work 
and it is currently ongoing. Initially, it was determined because the Snow 
Creek Power Plant’s peak output of 361 kw is below 500 kw, it is not 
subject to the California Independent System Operator (CAISO) regulation. 
This reduces a substantial amount of work and cost required in the 

Action Items: 
(Cont.) 
Request Authorization 
for Board Attendance to 
Urban Water Institute’s 
Spring Water 
Conference 
 
 
 
 
 
Request Acceptance of 
2014-2015 
Replacement Pipeline – 
Avenida Caballeros 36” 
(Amado Rd. & Alejo 
Rd.) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Request Approval to 
Enter Into a Jt. Agrmt. 
with SCE & JTN 
Energy 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



8621 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 01/05/16 

 
procurement of a ReMAT contract. In light of this new information, JTN 
revisited the cost effectiveness of procuring a ReMAT contract with SCE 
and has proposed a contract agreement almost identical to the Whitewater 
Power Plant. 
 
  Concluding his report, Mr. Krause said that JTN will prepare 
a ReMAT application for DWA and submit it to SCE. DWA will pay the 
$702 application fee ($2/kw x 351 kw). SCE will confirm receipt of the 
application and deem it complete for the applicable program period. After 
receipt of the application, SCE will begin drafting a power purchase 
agreement. SCE will have 60 days to prepare said agreement and DWA has 
10 days to respond. Staff requests authorization for the General Manager to 
enter into a consulting contract with JTN Energy, LLC for the procurement 
of a 20-year term SCE ReMAT contract, and to execute the forthcoming 
20-year term ReMAT power purchase agreement. 
 
  In response to Director Oygar, Agency Counsel Riddell noted 
that he reviewed the proposed contract. 
   
  Director Ewing made a motion to authorize the General 
Manager to enter into a consulting contract with JTN Energy, LLC for the 
procurement of a 20-year term SCE ReMAT contract, and to execute the 
forthcoming 20-year term ReMAT power purchase agreement. Director 
Oygar seconded the motion, which carried unanimously. 
 
17364.  President Cioffi called upon Assistant General Manager 
Krause to present staff’s request for authorization to execute compensation 
agreements for transfer to the City of Desert Hot Springs. 
 
  Director Ewing announced he has a business relationship with 
the City of Desert Hot Springs. Pursuant to Government Code Section 
1090, he recused himself from this item and left the Board room. 
 
  Mr. Krause reported that the City of Desert Hot Springs has 
requested DWA execute two compensation agreements required for the 
transfer of property (City Hall Annex Property and City Corporate Yard 
Expansion Property) from the dissolved Desert Hot Springs Redevelopment 
Agency to the City of Desert Hot Springs. The City is the Successor 
Agency to the dissolved Redevelopment Agency. The transfer is in 
accordance with the Redevelopment Agency’s Long-Range Property 
Management Plan (LRPMP), which was formally approved by the 
California Department of Finance. 
 
  Continuing his report, Mr. Krause noted that DWA received 
taxes from the Desert Hot Springs Redevelopment Agency between the 
years 2009-2012, which were passed through under statutory pass through 
regulations. DWA’s financial impact resulting from the execution of these 
compensation agreements is negligible. Staff recommends that the Board 

Action Items: 
(Cont.) 
Request Approval to 
Enter Into a Jt. Agrmt. 
with SCE & JTN 
Energy 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Request Authorization 
to Execute 
Compensation 
Agrmts/City of Desert 
Hot Springs 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



8622 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 01/05/16 

 
execute said compensation agreements for APN’s 639-252-018, -019, 041 
and 042; and APN’s 663-320-009 and -011, both in the City of Desert Hot 
Springs. 
  Director Oygar made a motion to approve staff’s 
recommendation to execute said compensation agreements. Vice President 
Stuart seconded the motion, which carried 4-0-1 (Director Ewing 
abstained). 
 
  Director Ewing returned to the Board room. 
 
17365.  President Cioffi asked Agency Counsel Riddell to provide a 
report on the December 17, 2015 meeting of the Board of Directors of the 
State Water Project Contractors Authority and Board of Directors of the 
State Water Contractors, Inc. 
   
  Mr. Riddell provided a report on the following items: 1) 
SWPCA Board meeting, 2) Proposed Water Transfer, 3) Water Operations 
Report, 4) Energy Report, 5) Temporary Urgency Change Petition, 6) One 
Year Transfers, and 7) Energy Objectives Update. 
 
17366.  President Cioffi asked Operations Engineer Johnson to 
provide a report on the 2015/2016 Replacement Pipelines Update (Belding 
Drive). 
 
  Mr. Johnson stated to accommodate the City of Palm Springs 
2015 street rehabilitation and slurry project, Agency staff initially worked 
with the City’s engineering department on a schedule to allow the Agency 
to replace the pipeline within Indian Canyon Drive, Stevens Road, and 
Wawona Road prior to the street rehabilitation work.  On September 23, 
2015, Borden Excavating was awarded the contract for constructing the 
2015/2016 replacement pipeline project. The City’s work was modified, 
adding several streets to include Belding Drive, between Sunset Avenue 
and Cerritos Road. The existing water main on Belding Drive (4” diameter) 
was installed in 1946, has been identified by staff as a priority main to be 
replaced, and was scheduled to be part of the 2017/2018 replacement 
pipeline project. He noted that since 2010, the main has experienced 31 
leaks. Due to its condition and the potential for additional leaks to occur 
during the City’s work, staff expanded the current replacement pipeline 
scope of work. 
 
  Continuing his report, Mr. Johnson noted at the December 1 
Board meeting, work was expanded to include San Miguel and Sunny 
Dunes Road. Although staff anticipates exceeding the budget by 8.6%, the 
Agency was able to replace over 6,500 feet of mains that had 180 leaks 
since 2010 that cost approximately $60,000 in labor to repair. In addition, 
the cost to install the pipeline from Borden Excavating was approximately 
22% lower than the next bidder, saving the Agency approximately 
$170,000 in construction costs, for a combined savings of $230,000. 

Action Items: 
(Cont.) 
Request Author. to 
Execute Comp. 
Agrmts./DHS City Hall 
Annex & Corp. Yard 
Expansion Property 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Items for Discussion: 
State Water Contractors 
Meeting 12/17/15 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2015/16 Replacement 
Pipelines Update 
(Belding Drive) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



8623 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 01/05/16 

 
Finally, it should be noted that the total combined budget amount for the 
last two replacement pipelines was $2.9 million and the anticipated total 
amount spent for these combined projects is $2.9 million. 
 
  Responding to President Cioffi, Finance Director Krieger 
noted there is money in the contingency main budget and other contingency 
budgets, if needed. 
 
  In response to Director Ewing, Mr. Johnson stated he is 
working with city staff and coordinating work/project schedules. 
   
17367.  President Cioffi noted that Board packets included media and 
public information reports for December 2015.  
 
17368.  Vice President Stuart thanked past President Ewing for his 
leadership. 
 
  Director Ewing requested staff provide a response to Mr. 
Daniel regarding his comments about the Agency receiving tax credits. 
   
  Mr. Krieger replied that the Agency does not receive any tax 
credit from the IRS by forwarding participant’s tax information. He noted 
that the Agency can still submit 1099 forms without taxpayer information.  
 
17369.  At 9:14 a.m., President Cioffi convened into Closed Session 
for the purpose of Conference with Legal Counsel, (A) Existing Litigation, 
pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1), Agua Caliente Band 
of Cahuilla Indians vs. Coachella Valley Water District, et al; (B) Existing 
Litigation, pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1), ACBCI 
vs. County of Riverside, et al; (C) Existing  Litigation, pursuant to 
Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1), Desert Water Agency vs. U.S. 
Department of Interior. 
 
17370.  At 9:16 a.m., President Cioffi reconvened the meeting into 
open session and announced there was no reportable action. 
 
17371.  In the absence of any further business, President Cioffi 
adjourned the meeting at 9:17 a.m. 
  
  

                                         ____________________________________ 
                                         James Cioffi, President                                  

 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________________ 
Kristin Bloomer, Secretary-Treasurer 

Discussion Items: 
(Cont.) 
2015/16 Replacement 
Pipelines Update 
(Belding Drive) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Public Information – 
December 2015 
 
 
Directors 
Comments/Requests 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Closed Session: 
A. Existing Litigation – 
ACBCI vs. CVWD, et 
al 
B. Existing Litigation – 
ACBCI vs. Riverside 
County 
C. Existing Litigation – 
DWA vs. U.S. Dept. of 
Interior 
 
 
 
Reconvene – No 
Reportable Action 
 
 
Adjournment 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



3 

Page 1 of 3 

 

GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 
JANUARY 19, 2016 

 
  
 

 

2015/2016 POTABLE WATER RESERVOIR MAINTENANCE PROJECT UPDATES: 

1. Foothill Reservoir No. 1 work consists of:  

a.  Exterior sand blasting and painting: The work is approximately 50% completed 

2. Foothill Reservoir No. 2 work consists of: 

a. Interior sand blasting and coating: The work is completed, accepted, and the 
reservoir is in service 

b. Exterior sand blasting and painting: The work is approximately 99% completed. The 
contractor has to touch up some minor exterior scratches.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Page 2 of 3 

 

3. Southridge Reservoir No. 2 work consists of: 

a. Interior sand blasting and coating: The work is completed, accepted, and the 
reservoir is in service 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4. Cathedral City North Reservoir work consists of: 

a. Interior sand blasting and coating: Work should begin on January 18. DWA is in the 
process of draining the reservoir. 

5. Andreas Reservoir No. 1 work consists of: 

a. Interior sand blasting and coating: Work on this reservoir should begin on February 
15 

b. Exterior sand blasting and painting: Work on this reservoir should begin on February 
15 

6. Palm Oasis Forebay Reservoir work consists of: 

a. Interior sand blasting and coating: Work on this reservoir should begin on April 21 

b. Exterior sand blasting and painting: Work on this reservoir should begin on April 21 

                                                                                   

 
 
 
 
 



Page 3 of 3 

 

 
 
 
 

During inspection of fire hydrants on Via Escuela (Southeast corner of Via Escuela and Mira 
Vista) staff found the riser for hydrant #1175 was very corroded. The hydrant riser is scheduled 
to be replaced on January 15 and the hydrant is still in service. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 





























7-A 

BOARD/COMM/Assign – January, 2016                                                                                                                                               *Committee Chair 
 

DESERT WATER AGENCY 
Board Committee Assignments 

January 19, 2016 
 

STANDING COMMITTEES: 
 
Executive Committee:                  Cioffi* - Stuart        

 

♦ Agency Policies 
♦ Legislation & Legal Issues 
♦ General Goals and Objectives 
♦ Inter-governmental relations 
♦ General Manager Review 
♦ General Plan 
 
Finance Committee:             Stuart* - Bloomer 
 

♦ Annual Budget review 
♦ Monthly financial statement review 
♦ Rates, fees and charges 
 
Human Resources Committee:              Ewing * - Oygar 

 

♦ Personnel 
♦ Employee Benefits 
 
Conservation & Public Affairs Committee:              Cioffi* - Oygar 
 

♦ Public Information, Relations, Education 
♦ Customer Service 
♦ Conservation 
 

AD HOC COMMITTEES: 
 
2016 Legislative Session Ad Hoc Committee:         Ewing* - Bloomer 
 

♦ SWP Issues 
♦ D.C. / Sacramento Issues 
 



8-A 

Page 1 of 2 
 

STAFF REPORT 
TO 

DESERT WATER AGENCY  
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
JANUARY 19, 2016 

 
 

RE: DECEMBER 2015 WATER USE REDUCTION FIGURES 
 
Desert Water Agency and its customers achieved a 9.5 percent reduction in total water 
production during December 2015 compared to the same month in 2013 – the baseline 
year used by the State Water Resources Control Board (State Water Board) to measure 
statewide conservation achievements. Desert Water Agency’s cumulative water savings 
June through December is 27 percent. 

To comply with Governor Brown’s April 1, 2015 Executive Order to reduce statewide 
water use by 25 percent, the State Water Board imposed mandatory restrictions and 
assigned different mandatory conservation goals to each urban area based on per 
capita water use. The adopted regulations require DWA to achieve a mandatory 36 
percent reduction. 

Below is additional information reported to the State Board for December 2015.  

Water Production for December 2015 2,001 AF 

Water Production for December 2013 2,210.8 AF 

Quantity of potable water delivered for all commercial, industrial, 
and institutional users for the reporting month 

554 AF 

The percentage of the Total Monthly Potable Water Production 
going to residential use only for the reporting month 

67.5% 

Population (inclusive of seasonal residents) 105,035 

Estimated R-GPCD  135.08  

How many public complaints of water waste or violation of 
conservation rules were received during the reporting month? 

65 

How many contacts (written or verbal) were made with customers 
for actual or alleged water waste or for a violation of water 
conservation rules? 

58 



  

Page 2 of 2 
 

How many formal warning actions (e.g.: written notifications, 
warning letters, door hangers) were issued for water waste or for a 
violation of conservation rules? 

45 

How many fines were issued for water waste or for a violation of 
conservation rules? 

0 

Comments: The Agency’s service area is highly seasonal making population analysis a 
complex task. The State Water Resources Control Board (State Board) analyzes data 
on a per capita basis. Historically, DWA has submitted data based on the permanent 
population of the service area; however that data does not accurately reflect water use 
in DWA’s service area which has a highly seasonal population. Based on local data, the 
correct population is higher than previously reported. The Residential Gallons Per 
Capita Per Day (R-GPCD) is being submitted using the corrected population.  

DWA would like it noted that the amount of fresh water outflow to the ocean during the 
month of December was 299,137 acre feet. 

Additionally, since it began recycling water Desert Water Agency has reclaimed 86,465 
acre feet. If our recycled water production for December was taken into consideration 
against our potable production, the conservation achieved would have been several 
percentage points higher. 

 



8-B 
 
 

STAFF REPORT 
TO 

DESERT WATER AGENCY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
JANUARY 19, 2016 

 

 

RE:  LAKE PERRIS SEISMIC REMEDIATION 
 
 

Attached is the Lake Perris Construction Contract Update provided by the 
Department of Water Resources, Operations Maintenance and Engineering 
Committee.  This is a monthly summary of contract work, contract challenges, 
impacts, and a table showing contract payments and change orders. 
 
Significant changes since the last report on November 5, 2015 are the completed 
work percentage has progressed from 23% to 33%.  The Department’s 
assessment of the excavation hazards near the Inlet/Outlet Tower differ from the 
Contractor’s consultant hazard assessment. DWR and the Contractor are 
working on a revised plan and schedule to complete the left abutment blasting 
and excavation, which will likely require a change order and revised 
milestones.  The contractor’s rock quarry processing plant continues to produce 
large quantities of unsuitable material with the contractor notifying DWR of a 
potential claim due to differing site conditions. Construction during El-Nino winter 
poses potential risk due to storm water run-off.  CDSM construction is proceeding 
with a 24-hour a day schedule for both rigs to help diminish the risks from storm 
water run-off.  Contract executed change orders have increased from $521,567 
on November 5th  to $718,549, an increase of $196,982. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 State Water Contractors - OME Committee Meeting  
January 7, 2016 

Perris Dam – Seismic Remediation of Embankment – Contract Update 
Specification 14-03  Contract No. C51484 

http://www.workzonecam.com/projects/pulice/perrisdam/ 

Contract Summary 
 

Notice To Begin Work:    August 20, 2014 
Contract Completion:      November 20, 2017 
Pulice Construction:        $75,538,626 
Engineers Estimate:        $83,000,000 
January Update:              33.01% of Work Completed,  41.2% Time Elapsed 

 
 
 
 
Completed Work 
 

Lake Bed Haul Road Cleared 
Lake Borrow Site Cleared 
Left Abutment Road Widened 
Left Abutment Slope Evaluated 
 

 
 
 
Safety 
 

DWR and Contractor are working to resolve left abutment safety hazard 
concerns.  Contractor has successfully completed over 28 work days without a 
lost-time incident.  1 lost-time incident in December 2015.  

 
On-Going Work 
 

Installation of Relief Well Row 2, Excavation of Existing Toe Road, CDSM 
production activities – Mixing, Curing, Core Sampling, Trimming 

 
Schedule 
 

Construction sequencing has been modified to allow CDSM construction before 
construction of the toe drain.  Toe drain requires filter and drain material from 
quarry/processing via the left abutment road (both of which are behind schedule).  
Contractor’s revised schedule shows all work finished by contract completion date. 

 
Construction Contract Challenges and Potential Impacts 
 

Left Abutment Road Blasting 
Contractor has suspended work on blasting and excavation of the road near the 
tower due to their concerns regarding a rock fracture exposed during excavation.  
DWR has reviewed the contractor’s consultant report.  DWR and the contractor 
evaluations show differing hazard levels.  DWR and the contractor are working 
on a revised plan and schedule to complete the left abutment blasting and 
excavation, which will likely require a change order and revised milestones. 

 

http://www.workzonecam.com/projects/pulice/perrisdam/


 State Water Contractors - OME Committee Meeting  
January 7, 2016 

Perris Dam – Seismic Remediation of Embankment – Contract Update 
Specification 14-03  Contract No. C51484 

http://www.workzonecam.com/projects/pulice/perrisdam/ 

 
Quarry Rock Processing 
Contractor is reconfiguring the processing plant since it was not achieving 
specification for materials for filter and drain.  Plant was also producing large 
percentage of unusable materials.  The filter and drain material is required for the 
completion of the new toe drain.  The new toe drain was specified to be complete 
by July 1, 2015.  Liquidated Damages associated with this milestone is 
$7,500/day. Contractor has notified DWR of potential claim due to differing site 
conditions, but no costs indicated. 
   
Other Challenges 
Construction during El-Nino winter poses potential risk due to storm water run-off 
from dam crest and face.  Normal drainage from dam site flows across work 
area, which is currently excavated for CDSM construction.   
 
CDSM construction proceeding with “24-hour a day” schedule for both rigs.  
Inspection, sampling, and testing for quality assurance require increased labor 
from DWR inspectors, geologists, and lab engineers. 

 
Contractor Pay Request 
 

Month Pay Request Total Contract Paid 
to Date 

Estimated Days/Cost 
Ahead/Behind Schedule 

October $3,026,114 $16,799,901 90 days/$12M behind. 

November $2,696,968 $19,496,869 120 days/$10M behind 

December $4,189,249 $23,686,119 150 days/$8M behind 

 
Contractor Executed Change Orders 
 
Change 
Order Description Date Amount Additional 

Time (Days) 
1-8 See November Update - $147,462  0 

9 
Furnish office furniture for the Engineer's Field 

Office and provide modifications to the laboratory 
and associated equipment. 

8/25/2015 $18,310  0 

Adjustments Differing Site, Well Decommission, Working 
Limits, Fiber Cable Relocation  Pending $552,777 0 

 Total Adjustments and CCO 
 

$718,549 0 
 

http://www.workzonecam.com/projects/pulice/perrisdam/

	01 19 16 Board Agenda
	Item 2 01 05 16 Board Minutes
	2
	MINUTES
	OF THE REGULAR MEETING
	Attendance

	Item 3 01 19 16 GM report
	JANUARY 19, 2016

	Item 4 01 13 16 Exec  Comm 
	Item 6 Dec.Treasurer Rpt
	Item 7A Board Committee Assignments 2016 01 19 16
	Item 8A 01 19 16 December 2015 Water Use Reduction Figures Staff Report
	Item 8B 01 19 16 Lake Perris remediation staff report

